NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The head office and principal place of business of Digital China
Holdings Limited in Hong Kong is located at Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon
House, Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

. distribution of information technology (“IT") products
. provision of systems integration services

. development and distribution of networking products

2. IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAPs")

The following new and revised SSAPs are effective for the first time for

the current year’s financial statements:

0 SSAP 12 “Income taxes"
(Revised)
. SSAP 35 “Accounting for government grants and

disclosure of government assistance"”

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and disclosure
practices. The major effects on the Group's accounting policies and on
the amounts disclosed in these financial statements of adopting these
SSAPs are summarised as follows:

SSAP 12 (Revised) prescribes the accounting for income taxes payable
or recoverable, arising from the taxable profit or loss for the current
period (current tax); and income taxes payable or recoverable in future
periods, principally arising from taxable and deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses carried forward (deferred tax).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

2. IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (“SSAPs")
(cont’d)

The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP on these financial

statements is described below:

Measurement and recognition:

o a deferred tax asset has been recognised for asset provisions
made in the current/prior periods;

o a deferred tax asset has been recognised for tax losses arising in
the current/prior periods to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which such
losses can be utilised; and

. a deferred tax liability has been recognised for the unrealised
losses in inventories from intragroup transactions not yet
recognised at company level.

Disclosures:

o the related note disclosures are now more extensive than
previously required. These disclosures are presented in notes 10
and 17 to the financial statements and include a reconciliation
between the accounting profit and the tax expense/income for
the year.

Further details of these changes and the prior year adjustments
arising from them are included in the accounting policy for deferred
tax in note 3 and in note 17 to the financial statements.

SSAP 35 prescribes the accounting for government grants and other
forms of government assistance. The adoption of this SSAP has had no
significant impact for these financial statements on the amounts
recorded for government grants. However, additional disclosures are
now required and are detailed in notes 3 and 6 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2004.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in
the results and net assets of the Company's subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Associates (cont'd)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group's interests in associates
are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Goodwill or negative goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group's interests in associates.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life of 10 years. In the case of associates, any
unamortised goodwill is included in the carrying amount thereof,
rather than as a separately identified asset on the consolidated
balance sheet.

On disposal of subsidiaries and associates, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal,
including the attributable amount of goodwill which remains
unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually and written
down for impairment when it is considered necessary. A previously
recognised impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the
impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that was not expected to recur, and subsequent
external events have occurred which have reversed the effect of that
event.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the Group's share of the fair values
of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of
acquisition, over the cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of future
losses and expenses that are identified in the acquisition plan and that
can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative
goodwill is recognised as income in the consolidated income statement
when the future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to identifiable
expected future losses and expenses as at the date of acquisition,
negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a systematic basis over the remaining average useful life of the
acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount of any negative
goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired non-monetary
assets is recognised as income immediately.

In the case of associates, any negative goodwill not yet recognised in
the consolidated income statement is included in the carrying amount
thereof, rather than as a separately identified item on the consolidated
balance sheet.

On disposal of subsidiaries and associates, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal,
including the attributable amount of negative goodwill which has not
been recognised in the consolidated income statement and any
relevant reserves as appropriate.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there is
any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset
in prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset's recoverable amount is calculated at the higher of the asset's
value in use or its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Fixed assets and depreciation (cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the

cost of each asset over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land use rights, leasehold land Over the lease terms or 2% to 5%,

and buildings whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 20%,
whichever is shorter

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Office equipment
Motor vehicles

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset recognised
in the income statement is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets
Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly defined;
the expenditure is separately identifiable and can be measured
reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the projects are technically
Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is

feasible; and the products have commercial value.

expensed when incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Intangible assets (cont'd)

Research and development costs (cont'd)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the unit of production method,
commencing from the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted-average basis. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

During the year, the rates used to determine the general provision of
the inventories of a business segment were revised. In the opinion of
the directors, the revised general provision rates would be more
appropriate for the Group to determine the inventory value. The effect
of this change of accounting estimate was not material to the results
for the year.

Contract accounting

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise equipment and material
costs,

subcontracting costs, direct labour and an appropriate

proportion of variable and fixed overheads.
Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the percentage of

completion method, measured by reference to the proportion of work
completed to date to the estimated total work of the relevant contract.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Contract accounting (cont'd)
Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which
are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement or in equity if it relates to items
that are recognised in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Income tax (cont'd)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences:

. except where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax assets and unused tax losses carried forward,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the unused
tax assets and unused tax losses carried forward can be utilised:

. except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from negative goodwill or the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Income tax (cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) contract revenue, on the percentage of completion basis, as
further explained in the accounting policy for “Contract
accounting” above;

(c) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account

the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (cont'd)
(d) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the required number
of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of
the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such
payments in the event that such a termination of employment meets
the circumstances specified in the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future long
service payments to employees, as a number of current employees
have achieved the required number of years of service to the Group, to
the balance sheet date, in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated in the circumstances specified. A provision
has not been recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is
not considered probable that the situation will result in a material
future outflow of resources from the Group.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the
Group's employer voluntary contributions, which are partially refunded
to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Employee benefits (cont'd)

Pension schemes (cont'd)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the
Mainland of the People's Republic of China (“Mainland China") are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The financial
impact of share options granted under the share option scheme is not
recorded in the Company's or the Group's balance sheet until such
time as the options are exercised, and no charge is recorded in the
income statement or balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of
share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which are cancelled prior to their exercise date, or
which lapse, are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

capitalised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the capital and reserves section of
the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at that date.
Exchange differences are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and
associates are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the net
investment method. The income statement of overseas subsidiaries
and associates are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year, and their balance sheets are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences are included
in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

74 DIGITAL CHINA 18 Ji 2%

3. FESFHEEHE @)

8=
EEEFIRBEZARBBERTREERER
BREARFBEETZREENDE  BEE
BRARE LESREREMERL - RERERFS
RAAEREREZNSERREE -

3

=l

s
INERSHTEXFAZERERTE - REE
BERGEERASINEEEZEREEREEY
BRAZERERFE - EXEZBNKERE
B o

REaIRE R - BINMB AR RiEE AR M
BHRREAREFREFEREE - BINIE
AR R E AR 2 W RIRFE R Z g EE
XMERBE MEFZEERABRREER
BEREEOZEXRERBYE - AUMELEZ
BEZRINANEL KRB FHE

HREEHRERERME @ BINBERARZRE
MERREREAPZEXTHERLE - B
MBARREBREFEARTELZERSRER
FRAZMBEFIERFTEREE -

ANNUAL REPORT #3#} 2003/04



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group's primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the
Group's geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. No
further geographical segment information is presented as over 90% of
the Group's customers and operations are located in Mainland China.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’'s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products and
services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from
those of the other business segments. Summary details of the
business segments are as follows:

(@) distribution of IT products segment engages in the sale of

computers, servers, notebook computers, printers and

peripherals;

(b) provision of systems integration services segment engages in the
provision of technical support services and training, IT
outsourcing services and the sale of hardware and software; and

(c) development and distribution of networking products segment
engages in the development and sales of network interface
cards, hubs, switches, routers, network security products, remote
access servers and network software.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—FEME=A=+—R

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 4. D EER (H)
Business segments EX 30
The following table present revenue, profit and certain asset and TFTXRZVNAEBEEHHDBZWA - FFRET
liability information for the Group's business segments: EENBEER:
Distribution of Provision of systems Distribution of
IT products integration services networking products Consolidated
DEITER REBRGEERRSB DEBEER wE
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
—eemE -TT=F -—BPWNF -TT=F —VPWE -—TT=-F -BPEAF | -FT=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Group A& BT T BT T BT T BT T BT BT T BETT BT T
(Restated)
(E31)
Segment revenue 2 EBWA 12,165,163 10,765,691 1,880,510 1,552,778 231,635 192,284 14,277,308 12,510,753
Segment results DEELE 626,507 748,120 255,575 214,872 58,058 38,057 940,140 1,001,049
Interest income A E A 3,126 3,436
Unallocated expenses AOERAX (868,916) (778,894)
Profit from operating ol
activities 74,350 225,591
Finance costs &R AR (46,751) (34,785)
Share of losses of FEML B R A& 1B
associates (3,498) (5,034)
Profit before tax R 35 A1 & A 24,101 185,772
Tax | 2,441 (6,517)
Profit before minority i > BHA% 3R
interests HE 25 A1 i 7 26,542 179,255
Minority interests DY PG RS 7,388 212)
Net profit from ordinary REBEIGEEEK 2
activities attributable i F R
to shareholders 33,930 179,043
Segment assets DEEE 1,913,724 1,725,251 699,170 739,256 102,329 85,774 2,715,223 2,550,281
Unallocated assets KOBEEE 1,322,993 1,369,379
Total assets BEE 4,038,216 3,919,660
Segment liabilities S EBEE 1,029,680 1,181,942 135,499 218,944 34,651 28,713 1,199,830 1,429,599
Unallocated liabilities RKOBEEE 1,462,746 1,089,982
Total liabilities weE 2,662,576 2,519,581
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

5. TURNOVER 5. EXH

Turnover represents invoiced value of goods sold and services &XFEENEZFHEEMIEERE CERE
rendered to customers, net of business tax, value-added tax and  (HIBR&EF - MEHRLBFHE  UWRESH
government surcharges, and after allowances for goods returned and E S #41) -

trade discounts.

6. PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. REHF
The Group's profit from operating activities is arrived at after ZAEEZ &L HNDEMNB, GEA) ¢
charging/(crediting):

2004 2003
—zens —TE=%#
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =2 BT T BT T
Auditors’ remuneration % BLRD B & 1,250 900
Goodwill: 2 15
Amortisation for the year* PN 2,208 952
Impairment arising during the year* REF EIRE* 4,512 -
6,720 952
Amortisation of intangible assets** EmEEESHE 16 865 -
Minimum lease payments under THEREFZHE
operating leases in respect of land KEHERS
and buildings 30,933 36,305
Provisions and write-off of doubtful FE W E Z IR KR
trade receivables* BB 12 18R 34,678 12,181
Provisions and write-off of obsolete PR & 17 & 7 4 Rt 8H
inventories* 11,492 32,426
Pension scheme contributions*** RKE 5T Bl i R 19,932 16,494
Exchange losses/(gains), net ER R (=) F58 (182) 1,663
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEERSE 1,626 1,685
Negative goodwill recognised as BREmERRBKA
income* 30(b) - (6,585)
Government grants**#** TR 488 0 % (11,678) (4,677)

DIGITAL CHINA & /i 2{ 1§ ANNUAL REPORT %% 2003/04 77



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—FEME=A=+—R

6. PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (cont'd) 6. R®EGZH (&)

* The amortisation and impairment of goodwill, the provisions and write-off of < HEMRHELIRE REFERERME  BEESIK
obsolete inventories, the provisions and write-off of doubtful trade receivables and RRERBERME  RERBBRANEHEE AL
negative goodwill recognised as income are included in “Other operating expenses, AlRERPHEMEEBRAFEIA -
net” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

¥ The amortisation of intangible assets is included in “Cost of inventories sold and e EREEBHEET AGERRRPHEEFE RIR
services provided” on the face of the consolidated income statement. HREZERAIA -

##% At 31 March 2004, the Group had no material forfeited contributions available to kA TEpUE— A=+ - AEEWES KA EN
reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2003: Nil). BAREEZRAKRSTEHRAZFRRER(ZED

=F | o

##%%  Various government grants have been received for the sales of self-developed ek ORKEEBMHEFPRBBEFIRAT 2 BITRBEERMG
software approved by PRC tax authority, the development of software in Mainland B ARER BB R B RRERERDETRE
China, and the investment in specific provinces in Mainland China. The government MEEE FTERAFER - BRI AERRBEKRERES
grants received for the investment in specific provinces in Mainland China were DETREZBRNBEABN B ZERAERER &
recognised upon the receipt of the grants, whereas that received for the sales of PR S B 17 5 2 B R R B K BE (7R B B i KO ER
self-developed software and the development of software in Mainland China were ZEF S RINEEERT 2 BITREEG RTK
recognised upon the sales of approved self-developed software and completion of FEMBERGERER - ZFBUNBREG ALGE WEK
the development of related software respectively. These government grants are FHEMEEERFEIN 2SRRI ERERZ
included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated income MRS AEIE -
statement. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants.

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAX

Group

AEE
2004 2003
—ZEEMEF —ET=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T ST T

Interest on bank borrowings RITERF B 20,209 15,204

Interest on discounted bills EEIRERENE 26,542 20,071

Total interest e 4z 46,751 35,275

Less: Interest capitalised B BEE AT S = (490)

46,751 34,785
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules HREBZSHALSHAR A AES LR A
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong ([ EW#REI]) RE B R FEF 161G E 2 NFE
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules") and Section 161 of the Hong Kong E&ZZ=®a T :

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
TEE
2004 2003
—EENME —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fees* e+ 300 300
Other emoluments: H A & :
Salaries, allowances and e RUEREMET
benefits in kind 7,104 7,706
Performance related bonuses HA R IREN 2 TEAT 8,502 8,254
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEI R 634 542
16,240 16,502
16,540 16,802
* Directors' fees include HK$300,000 (2003: HK$300,000) payable to the < EENEREINTFARAB U ERITEENNE S
independent non-executive directors of the Company. There were no other #300,0007C (=TT =4 : B¥300,0007T) ° A%
emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors of the Company ERARNEEALES N FARRABBILIERITE S EMA
during the year (2003: Nil). HhE (ZST=F: &) °

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the following #EANUL THEEBE 2 EEAZHWT -
bands is as follows:

Number of directors

EEZAH™
2004 2003
—EETONE —ZTT=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 7 2 % #1,000,0007T 5 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 #1,000,0017T £ % #1,500,0007T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,0017T 2 % #2,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 £ %% 2,500,0007T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 75 ¥ 4,500,0017T 2 7% ¥ 5,000,0007T = 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 75 #5,000,0017T 2 7% #55,500,0007T 1 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 75 #5,500,0017T £ /& # 6,000,0007T 1 =
9 9
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (cont'd)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, 9,500,000 share options were granted to the
directors in respect of their services to the Group, further details of
which are set out in note 28 to the financial statements. No value in
respect of the share options granted during the year has been charged
to the consolidated income statement, or is otherwise included in the
above directors' remuneration disclosures.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2003:
five) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2003: Nil)
non-director, highest paid employee for the year are as follows:

8. EEM= (@
EXEVENRRNEEANTLNENLRBREEM
&z ke

RERN  BEFRRANEERE GRS M ER
9,500,000 FE 12 @ #— T HBHR Y K|
RHTeE28 - RFARK 2 BRECERELRS
WHERAMBRIAEMTAFALREETHE
WERA -

9. BEE¥HANESR
AEEZEEHFLUEERENE (ZZF
FRAREE  REZMESFBERL LXMW
B8R - BT —RIEFZHFHER(ZTT=
FBAFEzZMeFBHANT

(=

Group

AEE
2004 2003
—EENF —EET=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - 285 & & Y18 A 655 =
Performance related bonuses R IR EN 2 FEAT 1,882 -
Pension scheme contributions RIKE T B R 12 =
2,549 =

During the year, 2,000,000 share options were granted to the above
non-director, highest paid employee in respect of his service to the
Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in note
28 to the financial statements. No value in respect of the share options
granted during the year has been charged to the consolidated income
statement, or is otherwise included in the above non-director, highest
paid employees' remuneration disclosures.

80 DIGITAL CHINA 18 Ji 2%

REERN - LI BEF2EEFEEARARE
] 12 f£ AR 7% 1 3% 2,000,00017 & fx 1 + # —
FHBHNTERENE28 - RERNZE 2B
% 2 {2 B B B AR & UK 25 5% U 3 BR 3k A B Ath 5 =0
STALIFEEESHFEEMSHER -

ANNUAL REPORT #3#} 2003/04



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

10. TAX 10. HiE
2004 2003
—sEms —ET=#
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(E31)

Group: AEH :

Current - PRC KEE — 5,727 4,398
Deferred (note 17) I FE (BT 5E17) (8,168) 2,119

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year RNEEMEZT L () B58 (2,441) 6,517

(@ PRC corporate income tax represented tax charges on the (a) HECEMSHERAEEFHKER A
estimated assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the EFTERBEN 2 RIES L - BRETHES
Group. In general, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject RAZHERRBEBEESII  AEBZ
to the PRC corporate income tax rate of 33% except for certain R B AR — AT R 533% .2 F
subsidiaries which are entitled to tax holidays and preferential BIZEMEHR o
tax rates.

(b) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made as the (b) HRASEEEHZ _TZT=RK _ZFTZTMF
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong A=t BHUHFEHEERSELMG
or has tax losses brought forward from prior years to set off FERBUEN - SR B BEFE A HEHER
assessable profits for the years ended 31 March 2003 and 2004. a2 HISEE  fRUITERETEFNE

TAVEL B -
(©) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and PRC corporate (¢) HREERATIREBEE_ZTZT=FK_ZTFT

income tax has been made for the associates as the associates
had no estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 March
2003 and 2004.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B
31 March 2004

—ETNE=ZA=+—H

10. TAX (cont'd)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to the profit/(loss)

10. Bi1E ()

before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense of the

effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the EHX)EFTEHFERUENT ¢

statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group — 2004
AEE - —BENE

RIB AR 5 & E M8 2~ 5] P B 5K 2 0K TE B K
AHERBATEAN, (BE) < BEMAX - BER
BMERAE 2 BRER B - ARERARE (A

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB B K fE
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
BT T BET T BYT T
Profit/(loss) before tax I % A F 7
(E518) 92,623 (68,522) 24,101

Tax at the applicable RERAMEGTEZ

tax rate HiIE 16,209 17.5 (22,612) 33.0 (6,403) (26.5)
Lower tax rate for RER MDA

specific provinces 4 [ B R T R

or local authority - - 4,544 (6.6) 4,544 18.9
Tax effect of unused RERZ REAFIE

tax losses not EBEZBBEE

recognised a1 0.1 9,173 (13.4) 9,214 38.2
Income not subject AR Z WA

to tax (9) (0.0) (1,382) 2.0 (1,391) (5.8)
Expenses not deductible ~ NA[HIF 2 f 2

for tax 215 0.2 7,836 (11.4) 8,051 334
Profit not subject to tax & 78R B 2 i F (16,456) (17.8) = = (16,456) (68.3)
Tax credit at the Group's & 2" & B B B F X

effective rate TE 2R - = (2,441) 3.6 (2,441) (10.1)
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10. TAX (cont'd) 10. HIE (&)

Group - 2003
AW - —2T=F

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
&8 B AR #E
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
BETT BEETT BT T

Profit before tax B T B g A 31,040 154,732 185,772
Tax at the applicable RERAMEGTEZ

tax rate i I8 4,966 16.0 51,062 33.0 56,028 30.2
Lower tax rate for FFE®R DT

specific provinces B R E Y K

or local authority - = (43,361) (28.0) (43,361) (23.4)
Tax effect of unused REER 2 KRB FIE

tax losses not EBEZBEBTE

recognised 6,398 20.6 496 0.3 6,894 3.7
Income not subject AR 2 WA

to tax - - 1,147) (0.8) 1)147) (0.6)
Expenses not deductible ~ RA]J I 2 X%

for tax - - 2,009 1.3 2,009 1.1
Profit not subject to tax /8 R 2 % £ (11,364) (36.6) - - (11,364) ((CR))
Tax losses utilised from FABAHAMZ

previous periods HIEE B = = (2,542) (1.6) (2,542) (1.4)
Tax charge at the Group's &7~ & B & [R5 X

effective rate FHE BB M - = 6,517 4.2 6,517 3.5
11. NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES N. BRRELABEEB 2R FEHE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The net profit from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for #HEZE_—ZTZWFE=A=+—HIFEBEALR
the year ended 31 March 2004 dealt with in the financial statements of A EHREANBREE B EEE 2 EMFES
the Company, was HK$58,920,000 (2003: HK$70,007,000) (note 29). 7 58,920,000 (Z T E = F : B
70,007,0007t) (Fff5E29) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

12. DIVIDEND 12. RE
2004 2003
—semE —zT=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Proposed final dividend - Nil (2003: R RS — &
7.38 HK cents per ordinary share) —EE=F  FREBRBET.38ML) - 63,372
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share was based on the net profit EAXERAENIEHEE _ETTNF=A=1+—
attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2004 of H IF FE 2 I R E (5 % | JF 58 4 8 &
approximately HK$33,930,000 (2003: (restated) HK$179,043,000), and  33,930,0007T (ZZEZ = : (£4) B

the weighted average of 858,935,014 (2003: 858,687,668) ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 March 2004.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share was based on the net
profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2004
of approximately HK$33,930,000 (2003: (restated) HK$179,043,000)
and 864,664,146 (2003: 867,074,361) ordinary shares, which was the
weighted average of 858,935,014 (2003: 858,687,668) ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 March 2004 and the weighted
average of 5,729,132 (2003: 8,386,693) ordinary shares deemed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all the
outstanding share options during the year ended 31 March 2004.
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179,043,0007T) ' U EREEZ _FTZWMF= A
Z+—HIEFEARABEBITEER 2 MEFHH
858,935,014% (— T = = & : 858,687,668

i) & &

BERERAMNDEEE_ETOF=A=+
—BEFEZRREMGG N FEOBE
33,930,000L (ZE T =F : (FF|) B
179,043,0007T ) K 864,664,146 (—Z T = =
E : 867,074,361H£) TERAAE - RO EE

E_TTNF=A=+—HIEFEAEB

% 2 hnkE 15 21858,935,014/% (=&

: 858,687,668%) + U MBRERAREEZ—
FZA=1T—BLFERMEERITE
ZEREFERSETRUHERASEBERTYE
WA Z INHEF 585,729,132 (Z BT =4 :
8,386,693%) 2 4B H1 o

DY A B
= o D)
Eﬁ?mﬁﬁ’ﬂf
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

14. FIXED ASSETS 14. BEEE
Land use rights,
leasehold land Leasehold
and buildings improve- Office Motor Construction
+ it 5 A - ments equipment vehicles in progress Total
HELHEETF HELBE BLOEXRME RE EEIR st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Group TEE BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cost: KARME :
At beginning of year REF] 127,290 29,554 197,982 21,525 37,519 413,870
Additions NE 35,035 1,397 37,369 3,796 50,030 127,627
Disposals e (3,219) (388) (9,189) (316) - (13,112)
Transfers LR 17,504 10,466 13,872 - (41,842) -
At 31 March 2004 R-ZBENE
=HA=t+—H 176,610 41,029 240,034 25,005 45,707 528,385
Accumulated depreciation: 2T £ :
At beginning of year RE 3,803 9,326 64,057 12,851 - 90,037
Provided for the year AEZHE 4,267 7,572 39,799 2,779 - 54,417
Disposals arfi=— (2,115) (115) (7,249) (316) - (9,795)
At 31 March 2004 R-ZZTONF
=HA=t+—H 5,955 16,783 96,607 15,314 - 134,659
Net book value: REFE :
At 31 March 2004 R-BENE
=A=+-—H 170,655 24,246 143,427 9,691 45,707 393,726
At 31 March 2003 RZZT=F
=A=+—8H 123,487 20,228 133,925 8,674 37,519 323,833

The Group's land use rights, leasehold land and buildings included

above are held under the following lease terms:

R EXAEE T MERE  HELHMRE
FIRBEATEHORARESE

Mainland China

B K pE
HK$'000
BT
At cost: TR
Medium term leases FREFFE 49 176,610
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

14. FIXED ASSETS (cont'd)

14. BIE&EE (#)

At the balance sheet date, certificates of ownership in respect of NEEEBEXRFAEH  BHEAEEIREAES
certain Group's land and buildings in Mainland China with an aggregate /&% 83,461,000 702 FF B A BE 2 + i MIEF 2
net book value of HK$83,461,000 had not been issued by the relevant HEBEZEZ M AEEBBRALERY - EEX
government authorities. The directors represent that the Group is in /&~ ' NEBEARRNABZE -

the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

Leasehold Office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELE WAERE " @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Company AR BT T M T T BT T BEET T
Cost: DN
At beginning of year R E ] 2,764 1,506 985 5,255
Additions NE = 151 - 151
Disposals & = (154) = (154)
At 31 March 2004 R-ZEZENF
=B=+-—H 2,764 1,503 985 5,252
Accumulated depreciation: REIE :
At beginning of year REH] 654 528 197 1,379
Provided for the year KEEFE 558 317 197 1,067
Disposals & = (150) = (150)
At 31 March 2004 R-ZZTNF
=B=+—H 1,207 695 394 2,296
Net book value: R T F B
At 31 March 2004 R-ZEZNF
=BA=+—H 1,557 808 591 2,956
At 31 March 2003 RZEE=F
=RA=+—H 2,110 978 788 3,876
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

15. GOODWILL

The amount of the goodwill capitalised as an asset in the consolidated
balance sheet, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries, is as

15. H&
ENENBAREEMNGEEEABERNE
AERBEEZHBLENT :

follows:
Group
rEH
HK$'000
BT T
Cost: B ARE :
At beginning of year and REARR-—ZSZTNF
at 31 March 2004 =A=+—H 22,065
Accumulated amortisation and RET S RORE ¢
impairment:
At beginning of year REH] 952
Amortisation provided during the year 7 4F & # 4 2,208
Impairment provided during the year NEERE 4,512
At 31 March 2004 R=ZZEMF=A=+—H 7,672
Net book value: IR EDFE ¢
At 31 March 2004 R-ZZEENE=A=+—H 14,393
At 31 March 2003 RZEE=F=A=+—H 21,113
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BEE
Group
TEE
Deferred
development
costs
i %E B 8% B A
HK$'000
BT T
Cost: X ARE
At beginning of year R E ] 6,044
Additions # 0 15,112
At 31 March 2004 R-ZEZENF=A=+—H 21,156
Accumulated amortisation: RET S ¢
At beginning of year R E ] -
Provided during the year 7N 5 865
At 31 March 2004 R-ZEZEMFE=ZA=+—H 865
Net book value: IR EDFE ¢
At 31 March 2004 R-ZEENE=A=+—H 20,291
At 31 March 2003 RZEE=F=A=+—H 6,044
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX 17. EEHIEA

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year EEFIBEEERBBEERNZESHUOT ¢

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEREBEEE

2004
—ZENE
Loss available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profit

A F A 3K 8 Asset
RRERB provisions Others Total
S| oA i EERE HAth Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group rEHE BET T BET T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2003 R_ZEZ=FMPYAH—H
As previously reported LAfE 2 5] = - - -
Prior year adjustment: TEFE
SSAP 12 - restatement of ST EEELF125 —
deferred tax BIELEIE 1,775 6,737 4,605 13,117
As restated E%ll 1,775 6,737 4,605 13,117
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRERZFZERFTA S
to the income statement (Hk) 2 BRI TE
during the year 1,270 5,575 (431) 6,414
Gross deferred tax assetsat RZ-ZZTNF
31 March 2004 =A=+—8A2
ELHEEERTE 3,045 12,312 4,174 19,531

DIGITAL CHINA & /i 2{ 1§ ANNUAL REPORT %% 2003/04 89



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities

17. EEH IR (8)

EEBIAEE

2004
S L
Unrealised losses
from intragroup
transactions
EERARS Others Total
EEZARBERER HAth @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group AEH BET T BET T BT T
At 1 April 2003 R-_ZEZE=FMA—H
As previously reported LA 2 7R - - -
Prior year adjustment: FERE
SSAP 12 - restatement of S EBHERIE 25 —
deferred tax B ER A 1,545 2,966 4,511
As restated E%l 1,545 2,966 4,511
Deferred tax charged/ FRERSERP MG GEA) 2
(credited) to the income iR RE 75 18
statement during the year 872 (2,626) (1,754)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R=-"ZEZMEFE=A=+—Hx=
at 31 March 2004 EERIEEERE 2,417 340 2,757
Net deferred tax creditedto FREWZRFTAZ
the income statement IE E B 1E 3 28 (Y EE10)
during the year (note 10) 8,168
Net deferred tax assets R-ZEZENF=A=+—HZ
at 31 March 2004 ELEHEEESRE 16,774
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (cont'd) 17. EERIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEMEBEEE
2003
—EZ=F

Loss available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profit

A F A 3K 8 Asset
RRERB provisions Others Total
S| A i EERE HAth Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group rEHE ok e BT I BT BT
At 1 April 2002 MN_EBEE_FPH—H
As previously reported LAfE 2 5] - - - -
Prior year adjustment: TEFE
SSAP 12 - restatement of S EEELF25 —
deferred tax BIELEIE 2,989 5,259 3,143 11,391
As restated E%ll 2,989 5,259 3143 11,391
Deferred tax credited/ FRNERERFTAS
(charged) to the income (HBR) 2 EFETE 18
statement during the year 1,214) 1,478 1,462 1,726
Gross deferred tax assets RZZEE=F
at 31 March 2003 =A=+—H2Z
FIER IR B E AT 1,775 6,737 4,605 13,117

DIGITAL CHINA & /i 2{ 1§ ANNUAL REPORT %% 2003/04 91
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S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities

17. EEH IR (8)

EEBIAEE

2003
—EE=F

—_—= ==

Unrealised losses
from intragroup

transactions

SERARS Others Total
EEZKRBERER HAth @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group AEH BET T BET T BT T
At 1 April 2002 RZZTEZE-FMA—H
As previously reported LA 2 7R - - -
Prior year adjustment: TEFE
SSAP 12 - restatement ST ERERFE12% —
of deferred tax EIEER A 526 140 666
As restated £l 526 140 666
Deferred tax charged to FARNEWTRF AR Z
the income statement iR RE 7 18
during the year 1,019 2,826 3,845
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-EBEE=F=A=+—HZ
at 31 March 2003 FEFREBERE 1,545 2,966 4,51
Net deferred tax charged to FRERZRFHNGR 2
the income statement i E 7 T8 3 88 (M9 3E10)
during the year (note 10) 2,119
Net deferred tax assets R-_ZEZE=F=HF=+—H
at 31 March 2003 I AE R I8 A B S 8,606

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$51,570,000 (2003: HK$12,934,000) which is due to expire within
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
subsidiaries in which the losses arose. These tax losses and certain
deductible temporary difference of approximately HK$23,057,000
(2003: HKS$15,452,000) have not been recognised as deferred tax
assets since they have arisen in subsidiaries that have incurred losses
for some time.

REE KRB R B KR ZFIEERIEQEK
51,570,0007T (ZEE =4 : #¥12,934,000
70) - AR SHE £ 2 B A 5] 2 KRR fE
T tm Al R AFRER - BRLEERIE
BEERETAHREEEZBFBAOEE
23,057,0007C (ZZ = =4 : # #15,452,000
T NDREEEEE-—REEZWBLF - ik
AERRBEEHIEEE °
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S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (cont'd)

At 31 March 2004, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2003: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries or associates as the
Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts be
remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SSAP 12 (Revised) was adopted during the year as further explained in
note 2 to the financial statements. This change in accounting policy
has resulted in an increase in the Group's deferred tax assets as at 31
March 2004 and 2003 by HK$16,774,000 and HK$8,606,000,
respectively. As a consequence, the consolidated net profits
attributable to shareholders for the years ended 31 March 2004 and
2003 have been increased by HKS$8,168,000 and decreased by
HKS$2,119,000, respectively, and the consolidated retained profits at 1
April 2003 and 2002 have been increased by HK$8,606,000 and

17. EFERIR ()
RIZEZOF=ZA=+—H BETAKEN
BARIKBERRZRELAFN - HRZERK
BELE - AEBEYEBERERINIIR - &
WEMEEEARERRELERERE(CEE=
FE)

ARARABRRISZBE - TEMEMEHRRE
B e

FARPG T EFERE 125 (KEFT) - #1E
NIRRT T2 - ZEABREBEHASE
BR_ZENR—_FTZET=F=A=+—HZE
TR & ZE 7 Bl N #16,774,0007T K &
8,606,0005C - At * HE-_TTNFR =T
T=F=—A=T—HLFEZREELZEER
FISFEAE, 5 Bl hn i %5 8,168,0007T K ik 4> 75 #&
2119,0007c ' MR _ZEZE=ZF R _ZTT _F[q
A—RBZ&EERE & A 5 5l M5 %

HK$10,725,000, respectively, as detailed in the consolidated statement  8,606,0007T & /& #10,725,0007C * 15 & P
of changes in equity. FEEREEK -
18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMBARIZRE
Company
P NN
2004 2003
—wEmE —FE=f
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRMD - KA 699,407 699,407
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BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered

18. RMBARZRE (&)
EEMBARFENOT -

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

and operations capital the Company Principal
Name of subsidiary EMRL ERTREBRERE AT activities
[ N ERREBEHE EHEmER EhEEZEML FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Sk
Digital China (BVI) Limited British Virgin Ordinary shares 100 = Investment
Islands US$5,125 holding
EEERARES il REERK
5,125% 7T
Alternate Agents Limited British Virgin Ordinary share = 100 Provision of
Islands/ USS$1 supporting services
Mainland China
RERBRES/ il RiHED
B A 1ETT X &R
Digital China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100 Investment
HKS2 holding
1IN S B R A A BB A A ®EZERK
VB 27T
Digital China (China) Mainland China Registered capital = 100  Systems integration
Limited** HK$50,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
N RS (R ) K e EERIIIE= PN REER R
BR A A 751 50,000,0007T 2 EITE B
Chengdu Digital China Mainland China Registered capital = 100  Systems integration
Limited** HKS$5,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
B &R 18 N B AS A IR A A ¢ K e EERIII= PN REER K
7% #5,000,0007T o 88 I TE @
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 18. RMIBARZKRE (#)
Issued and

Place of fully paid Percentage

incorporation/ share capital/ of equity

registration paid registered attributable to
and operations capital the Company Principal
Name of subsidiary HM&RZ ERTRBRRE PN activities
Fff 1 2 B & 7B B REEDH B MEMmER EHEZEHAL FTEEK

Direct Indirect

B 5
Shenyang Digital China Mainland China Registered capital = 100  Systems integration
Limited** HKS$5,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
E SN EES AR AR B K fE ERIIE=N EMER R
75 #5,000,0007T D8 ITE F
Shanghai Digital China Mainland China Registered capital = 100  Systems integration
Limited*#* HK$10,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
EEMMNEEER AT B K fE ERIIE=N EMER R
75 #10,000,0007T D ITE T
Digital China (Shenzhen) Mainland China Registered capital = 100  Systems integration
Limited*# HKS$12,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
1N B OR YD) B R A & B K e EER =N RBEK R
75 #12,000,0007T D ITE T
Xian Digital China Limited*®  Mainland China Registered capital = 100  Systems integration
HKS$5,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
TR EE AR A T A B K BE EER =N RAMER R
7% #5,000,0007T D ITE T
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Name of subsidiary

[l PNCEE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
MR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

paid registered
capital
ERTRBRRE
B B & A

18. RMEBARAZKRE (#)

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
ARAH
EiEEZEME
Direct Indirect

HE SE:3

Principal
activities

ETEXEK

Wuhan Digital China
Limited*#

BOE 18N B A R A Al

Nanjing Digital China

Limited*#*

R AN B A R A |

Guangzhou Digital China

Limited*™

BN 4 N B S B IR A Al ~

Jinan Digital China

Limited*#*

ERN B AR AR

Mainland China

KR

Mainland China

KR

Mainland China

B A BE

Mainland China

B A BE

96 DIGITAL CHINA 18 Ji 2%

Registered capital
HK$5,000,000

ot it & AR
8 #5,000,0007T

Registered capital
HK$3,000,000

at it & AR
78 #3,000,0007T

Registered capital
HK$12,000,000

o ffft & A
7 #12,000,0007C

Registered capital
HK$2,000,000

o ffft & A
7 #2,000,0007T

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered

18. RMEBARAZKRE (#)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

and operations capital the Company Principal
Name of subsidiary HM&RZ ERTRBRRE PN activities
i B 2 R £ BEREREBEHE EHEMES EEEZEAL FTEXK
Direct Indirect
=E: 3 SE:3

Digital China Marketing British Virgin Ordinary share = 100 Investment
& Services Ltd. Islands Usst holding
REBERRES A A ®EZERK

1ZETT
Digital China Technology Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares = 100 Distribution of
Limited Mainland China HKS$1,000,000 IT products
1o B B R E R B5E/ =B X 5 38 ITEE o

BERAA Bl K BE 75 #1,000,0007T
Digital China Advanced Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares = 100  Systems integration
Systems Limited Mainland China HKS$50,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
168 | SRS £R B F 4t B5E/ EER REK K
BERAAE Bl K BE 751 50,000,0007T 2 HITE @&
E-Olympic International British Virgin Ordinary share = 100 Holding
Limited Islands USS$1 trademarks
REEBARES R R FABEE

1ETT
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BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered

18. RMEBARAZKRE (#)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

and operations capital the Company Principal
Name of subsidiary HM&RZ ERTRBRRE PN activities
i B 2 R £ BEREREBEHE EHEMES EEEZEAL FTEXK
Direct Indirect
=E: 3 =3
Digital China Networks, Ltd. British Virgin Ordinary shares - 99.1 Investment
Islands US$10,000,000 holding
BINBEEERBR AR REEBRES EER RE K
10,000,000 7T
Digital China Networks Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares = 99.1 Distribution of
(HK) Limited Mainland China HKS2 networking
products
NS A4 (BB B EER DI Em
BRAA ENCPN 3 27T
Digital China (Shanghai) Mainland China Registered capital = 99.1 Development
Networks Limited*# HK$3,000,000 and distribution
of networking
products
N B AS (B 78) 4% AR R EERIIE= 3% & o 3H
BRAFH & #3,000,0007T MR E @
Talent Gain Developments British Virgin Ordinary share - 100 Investment
Limited Islands USS1 holding
REERARES =Rl ®EZERK
17T
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

18. RMEBARAZKRE (#)

and operations capital the Company Principal
Name of subsidiary HM&RZ ERTRBRRE PN activities
i B 2 R £ BEREREBEHE EHEMES EEEZEAL FTEXK
Direct Indirect
=E: 3 =3

Digital China Sinoray Mainland China Registered capital = 100 Consultancy,
Technology Limited USS$5,000,000 design, development,
("Sinoray")*~ integration,
application and
maintenance
of electronic
financial systems
188 | SR8 B HE Bl B AT OK e EERIIIN= PN TRE LRSS

BRAAE ([FEE])~ 5,000,000% 7T HYRE ) © ®RA
FE -~ SBK
JE B K% 4 v
Grace Glory Enterprises British Virgin Ordinary share - 100 Investment
Limited Islands USsst holding
EEERRES A A ®E K

17T
Digital China Software British Virgin Ordinary share - 100 Investment
(BVI) Limited Islands USSt holding
168 | A X 14 (BVI) REERARES EER REER
BRAFA 17T
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered

18. RMEBARAZKRE (#)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

and operations capital the Company Principal
Name of subsidiary HM&RZ ERTRBRRE PN activities
i B 2 R £ BEREREBEHE EHEMES EEEZEAL FTEXK
Direct Indirect
=E: 3 SE:3
Digital China Software Mainland China Registered capital = 100 Development,
(Shanghai) Limited** USS$375,000 design and
consultancy
of application
software
and systems
N SRS B A (E08) NGNS =L 1t & 2 J& A BX 14 K2
BRAR* 375,000 7T Bk
et KA H
Beijing Digital China Mainland China Registered capital = 70 Application
SicTech Co., Ltd. RMB19,000,000 software
("SicTech")* development,
systems
integration and
IT consultancy
services
36 e MBS B (5 15 8 Hh Bl K e EERIIIE= PN J& R E
RMAR AR (BEE]) A R19,000,0007T R - R
SR IT
6 77 AR 75
Beijing Digital China Mainland China Registered capital = 100  Systems integration
Limited* RMB50,000,000 and distribution of
IT products
3t Rt M B B R A A B A e EERIII= PN RFEK K
A R #50,000,0007T 2 88 ITE @
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd) 18. RMIBARZKRE (#)
Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage
incorporation/ share capital/ of equity
registration registered attributable to
and operations capital the Company Principal
Name of subsidiary HM&RZ ERTRBRRE PN activities
Fff 1 2 B & 7B B REED = i & A EHEZEHAL FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B 5
DGT Information Systems Hong Kong Ordinary shares = 515 Investment
Limited* US$2,250,000 holding
MM EEBAEGBRA R BB R & 3R
2,250,000 It
Preference shares
US$750,000
(EFil
750,000 7T
Beijing Instant Technology Mainland China Registered capital = 98.5 Provision of
Logistics Co., Ltd.** RMB10,000,000 logistic
services
ERBREYRBHEER AR NN 7 EERIII =N RN R

A K #10,000,0007T

These companies were newly established during the year.

The English names of these companies are direct transliterations of their Chinese
registered names.

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.
Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC law.

The Chinese names are the trade names but not the official names of these

companies.

DIGITAL CHINA & /N 875

ZERBIRAFENNKIL
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REPEEEIMRILRZIINELE -
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ZERFZHEXBBNES BN WIFHLAEM -
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

19. DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayments.

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. RIEARZKRE (&)
EERRERFMBZAREMBRARASIEY
EXARBAERZREANEAREEEFEL
BEXR#MD - EFRRMIBEMHBRARE
B BEFEEENITE -

19. FEUWH B D RRE
FEKIB D BB EER 2 REEEE
B -

20. RBENA S

Group

rEE
2004 2003
—EENE —ETT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets JE{REEFE 26,660 19,063
Amount due from an associate JiE Ut B = 1 | 38 4,891 6,885
Amount due to an associate J& 1< Bt & R B 3k IR (1,882) =
29,669 25,948

The amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

g (D BERRAIFBEDERR AR
EEEMEES -
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31 March 2004
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd)
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

20. RBE N TF 2R (M)

TEMERRZFBOT ¢

Percentage

Place of
incorporation/
registration

of ownership
interest
attributable

Business and operations to the Group Principal

Name structure A, AEBELESR activities

=F 1 EBEB EEREELY ERBEAGLE FTEEK

Digital China Management Corporate British Virgin 40 Investment holding
Systems (BVI) Limited Islands

=3 REABRES "B EK

Digital China Management Corporate Mainland China 40 Provision of

Systems Limited”® enterprise resources

planning software

and related services

BINBBEERSRBRAF =3 A B K e RECEBRES

;& A B BR 7S

Beijing Digital China Management Corporate Mainland China 40 Provision of

Systems Limited® enterprise resources

planning software

and related services

I REMNBBEERRR % K REPCEERRL

BIRAA] ;A R

Guangzhou Digital China Corporate Mainland China 40 Provision of

Management Systems Limited® enterprise resources

planning software

and related services

B AN B B R R A =3 B K e RECEEBRRES

BRAA ;A R

Nanjing Mercuries DC Financial Corporate Mainland China 30 Development and sale

Systems Ltd.* of automatic teller

machines and related

financial services

EREMNSEE =8 =3 R B K e BOEE KR SR

RO REERRQA HBEmZ

2 RIEHE
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—ETNE=ZA=+—H

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

20. REtE N TF 2 (8
TEMERRZFBOT ¢

Percentage

Place of of ownership

incorporation/ interest

registration attributable
Business and operations to the Group Principal
Name structure A, AEBELESR activities
=E ER T BEREEME [ 3 =R v FEXH
Beijing Digital China Wen Corporate Mainland China 40 Application software
Technology Limited®" development, systems
integration and
IT consultancy
services
3k A N SRS 4 Bt iR =3 R B K e TR 1 FE B4R B B
BRARH RREKRIT
A 7 AR 7%

# This company was newly invested during the year. # ZRTBTIRAREERTIRE -

* The English names of these companies are direct transliterations of their Chinese Y ORERNAZREXERBIIEEAAMER IR AR -

registered names.

All of the above associates are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

FMELABERRHBARBRMERE -

EERRERFEZAEEBE R R HAREE
AEERBEAEATENEAREEEFELZ
BEXR#MD - EEZRRMIBEMBERRE
B BEFEEENITE -
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

21. INVENTORIES 2. &8
Group
rEE
2004 2003
—zEmE —ge=%
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BT
Trading stock B5FE 1,101,402 1,020,503

As at the balance sheet date, none of the inventories were carried at REEBEBEXREERD @ MEFE A #HFE
net realisable value (2003: HK$39,222,000). IR (ZZEE=F : B#39,222,0007T) °

22. DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT CUSTOMERS 22. Bl (BN &HEF2RE

Group
A%
2004 2003
—sEms —ET=#
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BT
Gross amount due from contract B & A E b fE YR IE 2 FE iR
customers included in other BHRFE 2FIERE
receivables 15,717 17,597
Gross amount due to contract customers B 5t A £ 1 fE {58 2 fE
included in other payables BHRFE 2FIERE (5,035) (5,571)
10,682 12,026
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEBGBEXREEHRAEEZAHN
profits less recognised losses to date B IN B RE AR i A Rk B FERR B 18 273,126 170,806
Less: Progress billings W HEE R (262,444) (158,780)
10,682 12,026

DIGITAL CHINA & /N 875
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for a period of 30 days,
extending up to 60 days, 90 days and 180 days for distribution
business, networking products business and systems integration
business respectively for major customers. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed reqgularly by the management.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the balance
sheet date and net of provisions is as follows:

23. ERESRARERRERE
AEBFTEUNGEEFRBERFIIEE K
oM —REERFEFLEMNRIE - EEH—
MAI0OK - MDHEER  BEREREBRER
SREBZEERFREZEHIA D BIAIE
REZE60K 90K M180K « AEBE H K
WEIENRBERERE,ER  WEEEEE
EHM - BREEERRRERE BEES
TEHIRE AR -

REERBRAER  HEEBERBRZEVNES
RAREBRER ZIRESMTFBENT

Group

AEH
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Within 30 days 30K A 700,029 800,880
31to 60 days 3IRE60K 343,666 225,131
61to 90 days 61X 290K 101,999 134,537
91 to 180 days 91K E180K 233,266 161,376
Over 180 days i #B180K~ 234,861 190,257
1,613,821 1,512,181

106 DIGITAL CHINA 18 Ji 2% ANNUAL REPORT #3#} 2003/04



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

4. BERB|ITHER

Group Company
AEE AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EENF —TT=F —EENF —EE=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BT I BT T BT
Cash and bank balances /e RiR 1T & 521,071 667,097 489 684

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$488,552,000
(2003: HK$579,264,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance

REEBEBEREER - zlsiltx/\ﬁﬁ%w\&
BI)DEBEZRSRERRITEHE EXEBE
488,552,000t ( = & 2 = fF B
579,264,0007T) - ARBENGSE B LR AEAM
B R BREBEFEZINEE RGO R
E NERSEEEMATE  AEEEEERE
BRRETINEEB ZBITHARB LR ABHM

25. ENEZRARENRE
REEBBREER  BNESRARENERE

sheet date is as follows: BZIREDMEFIBEOT ¢

Group

rEE
2004 2003
—EENF —TT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days 30K A 576,741 711,060
31to 60 days 3R E 60K 491,577 446,339
61 to 90 days 61X 290K 35,847 140,647
Over 90 days B #E0K 95,665 125,982
1,199,830 1,424,028
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS,

26. MEMITEMR - |IEW

UNSECURED
Group Company
AEE NN
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EEMmF —ET=F —E2E@mF —FEF=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T o e BT T BT T
Bank loans repayable: FEEZBRITER ¢
Within one year or on demand —FRHILEA 463,014 448,986 = -
In the second year REZFR 273,000 = 273,000 -
In the third to fifth years, F=ZFEERF
inclusive (BEERME) 273,000 312,000 273,000 312,000
1,009,014 760,986 546,000 312,000
Portion classified as current liabilities FIVETR B B EEB D (463,014)| (448,986) - -
Long term portion = EF 10 546,000 312,000 546,000 312,000
The Company has guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans of REBEEBEBEXREZEH  ARFERETAER

approximately HK$463,014,000 (2003: HK$448,986,000) as at the

balance sheet date.
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2004 2003
—sEms —ET=#
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT T BT T
Authorised: JETE
2,000,000,000 2,000,000,0000%
(2003: 2,000,000,000) —ZEZT =4 : 2,000,000,000/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EREESEITTZ LR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RBER
859,746,331 (2003: 858,704,331) 859,746,331 (ZZE=Z =4 : 858,704,331}%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FlREESE0IL 2 B 85,975 85,870

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 1,042,000 (2003: ZAFE K © 1,042,000/ (ZZZ =4 : 24,000
24,000) share options were exercised at the subscription price of  17) Mt A R 8 #E ~ BE IR #E LA G BB #51.976 T 2 R
HK$1.976 per share (note 28), resulting in the issue of 1,042,000 BEEEITE (Hi5E28) * Eit * 1,042,0008% (==
(2003: 24,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash Z =4 : 24,000%) S EEHEE0.T 2 LB
consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$2,060,000 IR & RE CRIKEEX) 4976 82,060,000

(2003: HKS47,424). T (BT =1 : B 47,42470) T UAEETT ©
28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 28. ERESTE
2001 Share Option Scheme —EE-FHERESE

The old share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 14 May AR FZEBEREFZINR-_TEET—FHA+
2001 (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the board PHBEHAX([ZSE—FRERETE]) @ B -
of directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to full- AR FTEEE A MIEE T AR 7 5 H (E [ i B
time employees (including executive directors) of the Company or any 2RalZZ2BEES (BHFEHNTEE) ([EE]) AR
of its subsidiaries (the “Employee(s)”) to subscribe for shares of the BEARR TN 2 BRE - —TE — FERET
Company. The purpose of the 2001 Share Option Scheme is to provide ZIEXEEREEBH ST EBTAD R 2 BMD#
the Employees with an opportunity to obtain equity interests in the % @ NEBHREHEAEE 2 REKINEREFTE
Company and to reward them for contributing to the long-term success  H < B Ef ©

of the Group.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise 1BIE_TT —FEIRET 2T 2 BIRERETT
of options granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme had not FHEETEEFET2ESMMNEE » WiE
exceeded 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to  HBBE AR T FEDETRAZ10% £-E=E
time. The maximum entitlement of any Employee thereunder had not —FERESEIT  FAEEGERE 2SS
exceeded 25% of the aggregate number of shares subject to the 2001 IR & B I E B BZ =2 T IR LB 2 25%
Share Option Scheme. A consideration of HK$1.00 was received on HEHEKH 2 B EEEZMNFE WK ESE
acceptance of each grant. A detailed summary of the 2001 Share 1.007T - —TZT—EEREA S 2B ED
Option Scheme had been disclosed in the 2001/02 annual report of the RARRZ —TE— /T FEFRARFE -
Company.
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2001 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)

Due to the amendment of the requirements for share option schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, some of the provisions of the
2001 Share Option Scheme are no longer applicable.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2002,
the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme") (details of
which are set out below) and the termination of the operation of the
2001 Share Option Scheme. Despite the fact that no further options
shall be granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme, the provisions
of the 2001 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects to govern all outstanding options granted prior to
termination.

The following table shows the movements in the share options under
the 2001 Share Option Scheme during the year and the options
outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Number of share options

28. R EE (&)

—EER-FERESS (8

MR EMRRFTEERBREFEZRED
tEER]  BME_TE—FHBREAEZETIF
XABEA -

RIEZ_FLATN\BRBTZARARRRE
FRE L RNABBRIERS — B IRE
AE(IZEE_FEKREE]) (FBHRT
X)) REIEEE-_TT—FHEREE - AKX
ARATEBERE_ZFZT—FHEREAEE—F
RHOBERE  E-_TT - FEBRETSZIKEX
EEMMABITHIDARB T ERAORER - A
EEMEERLLAICREMmERITEZER

e

7 o

TRENE BT —FHEBREFTE TERER
AEERNZEEY  URRFDRFEREHRTE
Z B

BRERE
Subscription
Outstanding Outstanding price per share
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at BRABE Exercisable
01/04/2003 during during during 31/03/2004 (HK$) period
R-BB=F the year the year the year R-BZTHNE (BT Date TEH
Grantee A—A KEE rEE TEE =Z=A=+-—8 (Note 2) of grant (Note 1)
AR A 8 R AT Rk %53 AT AP i RAT6E (B 5% 2) R BH (Bt 3£ 1)
Directors
S
GUO Wei 2,800,000 = = = 2,800,000 3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
Y] 2,800,000 = - = 2,800,000 1.976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009
LIN Yang 1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000 3180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
w5 1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000 1976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009
HUA Zhinian 1,100,000 = = = 1,100,000 3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
EF 1,100,000 = = - 1,100,000 1976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009
Other employees 34,784,000 = = 2,202,000 32,582,000 3.604 08/06/2001 08/06/2002-19/06/2009
HitES 1,100,000 = = = 1,100,000 3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
(Note 6) 21,074,000 - 1,042,000 296,000 19,736,000 1.976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009
(Kt 3£ 6)
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2001 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)

Notes:

1. All options granted are subject to a vesting period of 4 years with 25% becoming
exercisable on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on the
third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary of the respective date of grant.

2. The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

3. The weighted average of the closing prices of the Company's shares immediately
preceding the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$2.888.

4. No options were cancelled under the 2001 Share Option Scheme during the year.

5, At the balance sheet date, the Company had 64,218,000 share options outstanding
under the 2001 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 64,218,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of approximately HKS$6,422,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$181,342,000 (before issue expenses).

6. Included in the “Other employees” were 1,100,000 share options and 1,100,000 share

options granted to Mr. Yu Lishan on 12 July 2001 and 31 August 2001, respectively.
Mr. Yu Lishan retired as a director at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 8 August 2003.

28.

BRESE (50

—EER-FERESS (8

M T

MBERLZBREORSRASNENGERELY - Kb
25% A R & & A B m—BFE 2 BRKTE -
25% 7] 1M A 2 A FISATTIE - 25% A1 M =B &
Z BFIATTEE © }25% ] 7w B F 2 B FATTE ©

FE AR R MO SRR B IO AN 2 R B R 3K 3 AT B S AE BAS
BHMAMUEERT THE -

ARFBEMD R R EBAAETTE B B AT i T35
B RE%2.888TT °

RAFEAREBRERE ST - FHRE SR
HUH ©

REERBERAEED  ARAAR-_TT—FEBERET
21T %5 64,218,00017) fE AR #E AR BETTIE - RIBARR A
ZHRBEARRE  2EATEZEFHARITEZ BRES
BHEEIN 764,218,000 AN A 7] 2 @A - A FIH
B R R 48 % 6,422,0007T K B 19 i B 4008 %
181,342,0007T (Rt #ATRX)

AATHMEEIRES IR —F+tA+=-AK
—Z2E—FN\A=+—HBE T FLIL%EZ1100,000
19 B AR # 121,100,00017 BB AR « FZILE4AER =TT
SFNANBRITZARABRRBFAG FREES
— B o
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2002 Share Option Scheme
The 2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted on 18 July 2002 and its
principal terms are as follows:

1. Purpose

The 2002 Share Option Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential contributions made
or to be made by the qualified persons (as defined below) to the
Group, to motivate the qualified persons to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to
maintain or attract business relationship with the qualified
persons whose contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

2. Qualified persons

Any part-time or full-time employee or officer or director
(including executive, non-executive or independent non-executive)
of any member of the Group or of any associated company, or any
supplier, agent, customer, joint venture partner, strategic alliance
partner, distributor, professional adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the Group, or the trustee of any
trust pre-approved by the board of directors of the Company the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which include any of the above-mentioned persons.

3. Maximum number of shares
At 31 March 2004, the maximum number of shares available for
issue under the 2002 Share Option Scheme was 25,948,033,
which represents 3% of the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

4. Maximum entitlement of each qualified person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company to
each qualified person (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company then in issue. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting of the Company.

28. R EE (&)

—EE_FBEREE
—EE_FEREAEIR_ZEE_FLA+
JNBEHHN  EFZBEZOT :

1. HBH®
—EE_EBERESESERAREHE
BRAT(EERTX) HAEEMED K
HEEL 2 BERts I se 2 BBk - BUARE S
ERATAREERZ FmBa B RIES
BEZBE - WSS BRES B/ AT
MEBKEER  GERATHEBREERS
BEHRAEBENERE -

2. BE®BAL

RNEBEMKE ARSI EARZE
R RBEEXSBAEREE (8
FEWAT  ERITHBLIERTES) @ &
NEBAERKE AR ZERMERER - R
BBFE - AR REMBBERY -
DIER C BEZAA - BEREZEER - 3K
AABEESHEEMEZTAEE(HZ
m A (KR EREET  AREERLEDN
HR)BEEMEMAL) ZZTA

3. BERHAHE
RZTTWMF=A=+—H =TT =
FRRESE TAHETZROESEHA
725,948,033/ R AFHRBH AR
AIEBITIRAZ3% °

4. BESERALTAERZESEHE

BRAEBATHEEN+ @A HERE
— T _FRRE I RAQ BT AR
BRES BT ER CERE (BEETRE
REARITEE) « EITERTABTRET
BOTZREERNBETFBARNARER
E BTN 1% ° EE —F R EBB I
ERZBRE  HAFRERNARBBRE
RELHAER - TAMEE -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2002 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each gqualified person (cont'd)

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates
must be approved by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company (excluding the independent non-executive director
who is the grantee of such options).

Any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or any of
their respective associates must, in addition to obtaining the
approval of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, be approved by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting if such proposed grant of share options, when
aggregated with all options (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) already granted to such substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive director during the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such grant of options, would (i)
entitle that relevant person to receive more than 0.1% of the
total issued share capital of the Company for the time being; and
(ii) represent an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000
based on the closing price of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange at the date of such grant.

Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
shall be the period set out in the relevant offer letter provided
that such period must expire on the date falling on the tenth
anniversary of the offer date.

Acceptance of offer

An offer of the grant of an option shall be accepted by the
grantee on or before the last day for acceptance of such offer as
set out in the offer letter, which must not be more than 28
business days from the relevant offer date. A consideration of
HK$1.00 shall be received by the Company on acceptance of each
offer.

DIGITAL CHINA & /N 875

28. R EE (&)

—EE_FERETS (B

4.

BERERATTERZESHAE (#)
ERNAARRES TRITBABREER
BRIBESEZHEA TR DBEE
VRERABZBILFATES (TEE
ERAEBREARAZBEIIFNITE
B HE -

FRARNARZEERE LB IEHNITE
FRBES Q2B A TR L ERER
fWEREL 2 BREN EEEZZRRE
BREEAL (BEZEEAR) +=EAH
MAEEFEZEERRABLIENTES
ZEAERE (THmEEITE « FHl M
RITEE) BE - (WVEZEBEATERKR
HOR% SRR B AR A B E B B BT IR AN A E Y
0.1% : R ()RR AR 5 R &% &% H B &
TRz WmERE - EREBRSE
5,000,0007t ' BIRR T ARG AR G E L
FEHITER ZHEI - MBBERERE
EEBRARBRRAE -

TRBREZHR
RIE—TT — FHBIGES 8 Z & - Bk
R HEITRE 2 IR AHE BB E L Kt
P&z HR - HEZHRARENB RS
TEEEBREm -

BREYN

PR 2 2R E XK N PRE LI %
BUZHRBERZAERRAZR M
ZRBTFHEEABELNBHE 228
BEXR - BIRENEERKADE AR
ER X (B 8 #1.007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004

—ETNE=ZA=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2002 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)
7. Basis for determination of subscription price

The subscription price shall be the highest of (a) the closing price

of the shares on the offer date; (b) the average of the closing

prices of the shares for the five business days immediately

preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value of a share.

8. Life of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain valid and effective

for a period of ten years commencing from 18 July 2002, the

date on which such scheme is deemed to take effect in

accordance with its terms.

The following table shows the movements in the share options under

the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year and the options

outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Number of share options

28. R EE (&)

—EE_FERETS (B

s

TRET

RBECEEEE
RBEBRTIRZESE : @KHRV
EHBEHZWHE  DRODNRERELD
HEROAEEER 2 FHETE :
(O ZHEE -

CEE_FRERESE AR
—EE_FREREAIN_FT_FLA
TR (B EREBERGREER/D E
M2 B) etz T FHREAGFERREE
(I

—EE_FERES TERER

RERANZBE  ARRFEYRFREARTE
Z BB

EBREZA
Subscription
Outstanding Outstanding price per share
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at SRABE Exercisable
01/04/2003 during during during  31/03/2004 (HKS) period
M=-ZZE=%  theyear theyear theyear R-ZTZNF (¥ L) Date TES
Grantee mA—A REE AEE AEE =A=+—H (Note 2)  of grant (Note 1)
AEA i R AT6E & WAT A i R AT 6L (ff5E2) RWHBH (B =E1)
Directors
=
GUO Wei - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 2750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
By
LIN Yang - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 2750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
W15
HUA Zhinian - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 2750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
ENLF
Other employees - 50,420,000 - 110,000 50,310,000 2750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
Hihfg 8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—FEME=A=+—R

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2002 Share Option Scheme (cont'd)

Notes:

1. All options granted are subject to a vesting period of four years with 25% becoming
exercisable on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on the
third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary of the respective date of grant.

2. The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

3. The closing price of the Company's shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “the Stock Exchange"”) on the business day immediately preceding 13
October 2003, the date of grant of options, was HK$2.675 per share.

4. No options were cancelled under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year.

5 At the balance sheet date, the Company had 59,810,000 share options outstanding

under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 59,810,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$5,981,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$158,497,000 (before issue expenses).

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at general meetings.

28. R EE (&)

“EER_FHERESS (8
Mgk

1. MBERLZBREORSRASNENGERELY - Kb
25% A R & & A B m—BFE 2 BRKTE -
25% 7] 1M A 2 A FISATTIE - 25% A1 M =B &
Z BFIATTEE © }25% ] 7w B F 2 B FATTE ©

2. FE AR R MO SRR B IO AN 2 R B R 3K 3 AT B S AE BAS
BHMAMUEERT THE -

3. ER_TT=F+A+=H (BIRLBEREL BT 2
EER)  ARARDESEMARXZIMABRAR
(M2 F]) 2 M B R EREK2.6757T °

4. RAFEABEBRERE -TT _FRBERESTER
HUH e

5. REERBREER  ARFAR T _FHERET
%I~ %78 59,810,00017 B Ak 2 R ETE  RIBEARA A
ZBEBEEANREE  2EAEZEMRITEZ BRER
W FE SN E£1759,810,0000 AN A 7] 2 E @A - A FES
BE AR A 48 % 5,981,000 & IR 5 & B 48 %
158,497,0007T (R #4718 %) ©

BEEIEBETHEAZTEREXNBRRAE
EREER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

29. RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 56 to 57 of this annual reports.

Reserve funds
Reserve funds are reserves set aside in accordance with the relevant

29. f#fE

A%E

EEERRFERNEFEZ R EREGHRED

CREEINR L FRESEE
FHERA o

FETE ZiREaER

RRERES/AKENFTEAREZKHE QRS

PRC requlations as applicable to the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland Bl BMEREH 2 HE - Z2SHEEZ ST B
China. These reserve funds can be used to offset accumulated losses i 21 EE - ETEEUBEREZ AR D
but not be distributable in the form of cash dividends. K ©
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
B 12 % {8 iR BB REER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Company AT BET T BET T BT T BT T
Balance at 1 April 2002 R-_ZEZ_FPH—H 289850 623,689 550 914,089
2
Exercise of share options 1715 B AR 45 - - 45
Net profit for the year N FE s F F 5 = = 70,007 70,007
Proposed 2003 final dividend — Note 12 #k — T T =FE R H = = (63,372) (63,372)
f& 8 — B2
At 31 March 2003 and beginning of year R -_ZZ =F = A 289,895 623,689 7,185 920,769
=+t—BEEW
Exercise of share options 171 fE AR i 1,955 - - 1,955
Net profit for the year KEEm A F5E - - 58,920 58,920
At 31 March 2004 R=-ZFEZFENE=A 291,850 623,689 66,105 981,644
Er=[

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a
corporate reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company'’s
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, over the nominal value
of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended) and the Bye-Laws of the
Company, the contributed surplus can be distributed to the
shareholders, provided that the Company will be able to pay its liabilities
as they fall due and subsequent to the distribution, the aggregate
amount of its total liabilities, as well as the issued share capital and
premium, is less than the realisable value of its assets.

16 DIGITAL CHINA 18 Ji 2%

ARBZHANBHBERBEL/EFAARRMNAE
BRXERETMETZ -AERBAEANKE

B8 X R] 2z B dn

RFEESRAAREAR

BMETZROEEZER - BREAREDQH

& (AT T LAMERT) RARR ZRBIHA -
HEARR B MAFREE
&g« ARBZHE
TRARGBTEREEENA

ABERAI DK T IR -
BRI ES  MEZES
BIEA KB #T
BRI -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 30. ZEBHERERMH=E
STATEMENT
(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (a) WEEHKIE 2D Al
2004 2003
—sEmE —ET=#
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net assets acquired: Frikig 2 BEFE -
Fixed assets B E & & = 6,092
Cash and bank balances R& RRITHE - 37,787
Inventories FE - 9,385
Trade receivables JiE U & 5 iR X = 14,518
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - E2 REM
receivables Ji& U R IE = 7127
Trade payables & & SRR = (33)
Other payables and accruals HipEftRELFEIRE A = (8,555)
Short term bank borrowings HMHRITER = (4,705)
Minority interests D BRR R = (6,319)
= 55,297
Goodwill on acquisition WHEREEZEE = 22,065
= 77,362
Satisfied by: AR
Cash e - 77,362

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect WEKEBAFMBEESRREEEBMEE S

of the acquisition of subsidiaries is as follows: R -
2004 2003
—sEmE —ET=4
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT T BT T
Cash consideration RERE = 77,362
Cash and bank balances acquired Bl i 2 3R & MR 1T 45 64 = (37,787)
Net outflow of cash and cash WEEM B R EIFTFEE € &
equivalents in respect of the HeEEBYWFRE
acquisition of subsidiaries = 39,575
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (cont'd)

(a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont'd)

On 26 December 2002, the Group acquired a 70% interest in SicTech
at a consideration of approximately HK$31,351,000. SicTech was
principally engaged in the provision of electronic administration
services. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash which was paid on the acquisition date.

On 10 July 2002, the Group acquired a 100% interest in Sinoray at a
consideration of approximately HK$46,011,000. Sinoray was principally
engaged in the provision of automatic teller machine network services.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash
which was paid on the acquisition date.

The subsidiaries acquired in the prior year contributed approximately
HKS$53,880,000 to the Group's turnover and approximately
HKS$4,164,000 to the consolidated profit after tax and before minority
interests for the year ended 31 March 2003.

(b) Acquisition of minority interests

30. RERESRERMFE (@)

(a) WEKHEAD R (&)
RZTBEZE_F+A=+/"B  REBULB
#31,351,0007T 2 B U HE B 15 2 7T0%HE 25 ©
BEEZRSRESFITERRYS - WEZHEE
RENRESSMT  TERKRBBEBEI -

RZZEZ_F+H+H - $EIMW%M
46,011,0007T 2 KB UK HE 3T 3E 2 100% 5 ©

1,0
EIENRERHADBEIRBMRY - 4&5%2
BEREUARSN - A RKE R B -

EZFEARBLMBRARBE_TT=F=
A=+t - BLFERAEETRERMNEE
53,880,0007T 2 & ¥ #8 & 49 % 4,164,0007T
ZBRTERHRR D BIRER AT AR o

(b) WHEDBIRRER

2004 2003
—EEMF —TT=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T ST T
Net assets acquired: Frikig 2 BEFE
Minority interests D BR R = 39,840
Negative goodwill arising on W i D SRR R =
acquisition of minority interests MELZBHE
(note 6) (Mf 5= 6) = (6,585)
= 33,255
Satisfied by: SN D
Cash & - 33,255
18 DIGITAL CHINA N & 55 ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2003/04



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. RREE
(@) At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for (a) REEABXRAEEZER @ WAL IR & E
in the financial statements were as follows: Bz ABBEOT :
Group Company
rEE P NN
2004 2003 2004 2003
—sEmE | —TT= —s®mE | —TE=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ST I BT T BT T
Bills discounted with recourse MAEBEEZERER 252,431 372,332 - -
Guarantees given for banking EWNBARIEFERZ
facilities utilised by subsidiaries RITHEERHE ZER - = 886,648 1,120,869
Guarantees to suppliers for BB ARRET
subsidiaries HER 2 ER - = 162,127 254,160
252,431 372,332 1,048,775 1,375,029
(b) The Company and the Group have a contingent liability in respect (b) R-ZEZENF=A=+—H KA aKEAK

of possible future long service payments to employees under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible
amount of approximately HKS$1.7 million (2003: approximately
HKS$1.9 million) as at 31 March 2004, as further explained under
the heading “Employee benefits” in note 3 to the financial
statements. The contingent liability has arisen because, at the
balance sheet date, a number of current employees have
achieved the required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated
under certain circumstances. A provision has not been
recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a material
future outflow of resources from the Group.

DIGITAL CHINA & /N 875

SEBRESBEEGOFEARES N
ZREARBe cHABBEN A ERa SR
A7 H1,700,0007T (ZEE=4F : LB
1,900,0007T)  #F15 R B 7% 3 & B 5 3
[BIRA—& - IRABELE - TTER
TEEBBRAEER  —LBEBEBEE
FFBEAREBRGENFE  AFEERK
ERE BB BERENEBEREGOET
ZREREE - ARRREBBELETES
BYRKRBEERNERORE - Bt AR3E
ZE T RE R IE TR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2k B

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and warehouse under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to ten years.

At 31 March 2004, the Group and the Company had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

32. KREHERH
AEBBRBCEHERHBEEEETFHAZY
ERER  HMBTWERANHERAT—F=+
$ °

R-ZZEMNE=A=+—8  REFTFITH
WrEERY  AEEMRADAIPEZINZ
R FEBEMKMT -

Group Company
KEE NN
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EEMmF —ET=F —E2E@mF —FEF=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Within one year —F R 23,743 22,294 2,420 2,530
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEERF 31,588 18,001 1,613 4,033
(BREEEMT)
After five years AF® 14,138 5,049 - -
69,469 45,344 4,033 6,563
33. COMMITMENTS 33. &iE

In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed in note 32
above, the Group had the following commitments at the balance sheet
date:

B E X2 Rt 2 R EHE R HESN - A&
BEREEREBERGER 2&AEWT :

(a) Capital commitments (a) EXREIE
Group
A%
2004 2003
—EEMF —ET=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4B R B
Land use rights, leasehold land THEAE - HELHR
and buildings BF 216,447 132,884
Capital contribution payable to HEgLE NG Z28E
an associate = 6,552

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any significant
capital commitments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

33. COMMITMENTS (cont'd)

33. &IE (8

(b) Commitments under forward foreign exchange contracts (b) EHIMNESHNEE
Group Company
KEE AT
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EEMmF —ET=F —E2E@mF —FEF=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Forward foreign exchange contracts RAEIINVER XY 153,665 38,864 153,665 38,864

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

34. FREALIXR S

(@ In addition to those transactions and balances presented (a) KBUHEREXHEMIOFR2IZZELFHN
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the BRI REERAFEBUTERZE
following material transactions with related parties during the FEALTRS :
year:

Group
AEE
2004 2003
—EENEF —TT=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = BT T BT T
Lenovo Group Limited (formerly known 7N/ &) #5 I A% 3R 2 BT B A &)
as Legend Group Limited) and its IR EBRA A
subsidiaries, the subsidiaries of the FEWB AR :
Company's controlling shareholder:
Sales of goods by the Group AEBEHEZEY (i) 28,253 4,812
Purchases of goods by the Group AEEBEECEY (i) = 965
Rental expenses paid by the Group rEBZHzHES (iii) 740 2,324
Right Lane Limited, a wholly-owned AKRrEBRBERz2E=EHA
subsidiary of the Company’s B ARIMBAEBRAR :
controlling shareholder:
Rental expenses paid by the Group AEBESTHzHES (iii) 410 660

D-Link Corporation, a former RAR—KHEBR T ZA

shareholder of a subsidiary of the f&% =R A B R D

Company, and its subsidiaries: ERRARIREWB AR :
Sales of goods by the Group AEBEHEZEY O = 25,906
Purchases of goods by the Group AEEBEE CEY (i) = 36
Acquisition of minority interest U B > SRR B A 2 (iv) = 33,255
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 75 ¥R AR Y A

31 March 2004
—ETNE=ZA=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)

34. FREATIXRS (#)

Group
EE
2004 2003
—sENE —FT=%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & BT T BT T
Digital China Management AREE 2 H &R A
Systems (BVI) Limited and its Digital China Management
subsidiaries, associates Systems (BVI) Limited
of the Group: FEWBRR :
Sales of goods by the Group AEBEEZEY (i) 1,704 1,893
Purchases of goods by the Group AEBEEZEY (ii) 2,586 =
Notes: B 3
(i) The sales were made according to the listed prices and conditions offered to the O] ZEHENREAEERNEFERFRBE 2B RIF

major customers of the Group.

(ii) The purchases were made according to the listed prices and conditions offered by

the related parties to their major customers.

fEM#ET °

(i ZEBEDRBEMEALIAEIZZFREHEZIE

R AR #EAT -

(iii)  The rental expenses were determined at rates mutually agreed between the Group iy MHEEDHREBEASEEEEEHEATRERTEARE

and the corresponding related parties based on the prevailing market reference.

T 75 15 E 2 HME o

(iv)  The consideration was determined by a price mutually agreed between the two (ivy, REDRBEIHEZEBRETE -

parties.

35. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, due to the
adoption of a revised SSAP during the current year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and balances in the
financial statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been
made and certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform
with the current year's presentation.

36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 16 June 2004.

122
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35. kBB F
M RMAN 2R Ve 2 e — F 5t - RARARE
ERMT —ERETSHERER  BBERE
NETHERGAHZEHEERERELE
T UBAFHRE - Bt BEHETUES
EHE MEFHBRFELASE - UFAK
FEZE2HHR -

36. IBHR2ZZE
AUBRECHN-BEMEAA+ABEEF

SHE MR T -

ANNUAL REPORT #3#} 2003/04





